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 K020000A Life Safety Code Recertification 

Survey was conducted by the Indiana 

State Department of Health in accordance 

with 42 CFR 483.470(j).

Survey Date:  08/19/13

Facility Number:  012439

Provider Number:  15G779

AIM Number:  201018350

Surveyor:  W. Chris Greeney, Life Safety 

Code Specialist

At this Life Safety Code survey, ADEC 

Inc. was found not in compliance with 

Requirements for Participation in 

Medicaid, 42 CFR Subpart 483.470(j), 

Life Safety from Fire and the 2000 edition 

of the National Fire Protection 

Association (NFPA) 101, Life Safety 

Code (LSC), Chapter 33, Existing 

Residential Board and Care Occupancies.

The one story facility with a basement 

was sprinklered.  The facility has a fire 

alarm system with smoke detection on all 

levels including in the corridors, in 

sleeping rooms and in common living 

areas.  The facility has a capacity of 8 and 

had a census of 8 at the time of this 

survey.
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Calculation of the Evacuation Difficulty 

Score (E-Score) using NFPA 101A, 

Alternative Approaches to Life Safety, 

Chapter 6, rated the facility Slow with an 

E-Score of 2.0.

Quality Review by Robert Booher, Life 

Safety Code Specialist-Medical Surveyor 

on 08/23/13.

The facility was found not in compliance 

with the aforementioned regulatory 

requirements as evidenced by the 

following:
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On 9/6/13 maintenance staff 

repaired the gate latch that was 

sticking. In order to prevent this in 

the future, staff will conduct 

monthly inspections of all egress 

to make sure they are in proper 

maintenance. PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE:QDIP. RES 

MANAGER

09/06/2013  12:00:00AMK020130Based on observation and interview; the 

facility failed to ensure exit egress for 1 of 

3 exits was arranged to minimize tripping 

hazards.  LSC Section 4.5.3.2 requires the 

means of egress shall be maintained free 

and unobstructed.  This deficient practice 

could affect all residents needing to use 

the one exit.

Findings include:

During observation on 08/19/13 at 10:30 

a.m. with the House Manager, the upstairs 

northwest bedroom had a door which 

exited onto an outside deck with a 

stairway which descended to ground 

level.  At the top of the stairs was a 

wooden gate with a latch located on the 

stairs side of the gate.  While attempting 

to open the gate, the latch was stuck and 

took a moderate amount of force to push 

before it would unlatch.  Additionally, 

once unlatched the gate required an 

additional moderate amount of force to 

open as the wood on the gate's frame 

appeared to have swollen into the post of 

the deck frame.  Interview with the 

Resident Manager indicated two residents 

in the northwest corner bedrooms used 

the exit as a primary means of escape, and 

the door was a secondary exit location for 

other residents in the home.  The Resident 
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Manager confirmed the gate was sticking 

shut and further indicated she was unsure 

if the residents in the home, who had 

intellectual disabilities, would recognize 

independently that they would need to use 

extra force to open the gate when it sticks 

in the closed position.
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483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

PROMPT

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7, 33.2.3.5.2 and activates the fire 

alarm system in accordance with 33.2.3.4.1.  

The adequacy of the water supply is 

documented to the authority having 

jurisdiction.

Exception No. 1: In prompt evacuation 

facilities, an automatic sprinkler system in 

accordance with NFPA 13D, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in One 

and two Family Dwellings and Manufactured 

Homes, is permitted. Automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft. and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 

sq. ft., provided that such spaces are 

finished with lath and plaster or materials 

providing a 15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 2: Not applicable

Exception No. 3: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities where an 

automatic sprinkler system is in accordance 

with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation 

of Sprinkler Systems, automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. 

ft., provided that  such spaces are finished 

with lath and plaster or material providing a 

15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 4: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities up to and 

including four stories in height, systems in 

accordance with NFPA 13R, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 
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Residential Occupancies up to and Including 

Four Stories in Height, are permitted.

Exception No. 5: Not applicable

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

SLOW

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and activates the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 33.2.3.4.1. The 

adequacy of the water supply is documented 

to the authority having jurisdiction.

Exception No. 1: Not Applicable

Exception No. 2: Not Applicable

Exception No. 3: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities where an 

automatic sprinkler system is in accordance 

with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation 

of Sprinkler Systems, automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft. and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 

sq. ft., provided that such spaces are 

finished with lath and plaster or material 

providing a 15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 4: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities up to and 

including four stories in height, systems in 

accordance with NFPA 13R, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 

Residential Occupancies up to and Including 

Four Stories in Height, are permitted.

Exception No. 5: Not Applicable
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Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

IMPRACTICAL

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and activates the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 33.2.3.4.1. The 

adequacy of the water supply is documented 

to the authority having jurisdiction. 

33.2.3.5.2.

Exception No. 1: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 2: In slow and impractical 

evacuation capability facilities, an automatic 

sprinkler system in accordance with NFPA 

13D, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in One and Two Family 

Dwellings and Manufactured Homes, with a 

30 minute water supply, is permitted. All 

habitable areas and closets are sprinklered. 

Automatic sprinklers are not required in 

bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. ft., provided 

that such spaces are finished with lath and 

plaster or materials providing a 15 minute 

thermal barrier.

Exception No. 3: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 4: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 5: In impractical evacuation 

capability facilities up to and including four 

stories in height, systems in accordance with 

NFPA 13R, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in Residential 

Occupancies up to and Including Four 

Stories in Height, are permitted.  All 
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habitable areas and closets are sprinklered. 

Automatic sprinklers are not required in 

bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. ft., provided 

that such spaces are finished with lath and 

plaster or materials providing a 15 minute 

thermal barrier.

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

On 9/6/13 the company who had 

installed the system was 

contacted to install the 

escutcheon plate as it was not in 

place from the initial sprinkler 

placement. The plate has been 

ordered, and we are awaiting 

installation. It is anticipated that 

the plate will be in place within 

two weeks. In the future, we will 

make sure all components are in 

place when we purchase new 

homes and instal sprinkler 

systems. PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE: Director

09/06/2013  12:00:00AMK02S056Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure 1 of over 10 

sprinkler heads in the facility were 

maintained.  NFPA 13R, Standard for the 

Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 

Residential Occupancies up to an 

Including Four Stories in Height, Section 

2-4.5.7 states escutcheon plates used to 

create a recessed or flush-type sprinkler 

shall be part of a listed sprinkler 

assembly.  This deficient practice could 

affect all clients, staff and visitors.

Findings include:

Based on observation with the House 

Manager at 10:30 a.m. on 08/19/13, the 

northeast bathroom had a sprinkler head 

location with a missing escutcheon plate 

which left an opening into the ceiling 

around the sprinkler head.  Based on 

interview at the time of observation, the 

House Manager acknowledged the 

aforementioned sprinkler head location 

had a missing escutcheon plate. 
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